
 

Rother District Council 
 

 

NOTE: Representations on any items on the Agenda must be received in 
writing by 9:00am on the Monday preceding the meeting. 

 

All Planning Committee meetings are recorded. 
 

This agenda can be made available in large print, Braille, 
audiotape/CD or in another language upon request. For all enquiries 

please contact julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk 
Tel: 01424 787811 

Rother District Council aspiring to deliver… 
an Efficient, Flexible and Effective Council, Sustainable Economic Prosperity, 

Stronger, Safer Communities and a Quality Physical Environment 

 

Planning Committee 
 
Date and Time 

 
- 

 
Thursday 10 March 2022 

  9:30am – 1:00pm and 2:00pm until close of business 
 (At the discretion of the Chairman, the timing of lunch may be varied) 

 

Venue - Council Chamber, Town Hall, Bexhill-on-Sea 
 

 
Councillors appointed to the Committee: 
J. Vine-Hall (Chairman), S.M. Prochak, MBE (Vice-Chairman), Mrs M.L. Barnes, 
G.C. Curtis, B.J. Drayson (ex-officio), S.J. Errington, A.E. Ganly, P.J. Gray, 
K.M. Harmer, J.M. Johnson, L.M. Langlands, C.A. Madeley, A.S. Mier, 
Rev H.J. Norton and G.F. Stevens. 
 
Substitute Members: J. Barnes, Mrs V. Cook and H.L. Timpe. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1.   MINUTES   

 To authorise the Chairman to sign the minutes of the meeting of the Planning 
Committee held on the 17 February 2022 as a correct record of the 
proceedings. 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTES   

3.   ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS   

 To consider such other items as the Chairman decides are urgent and due 
notice of which has been given to the Head of Paid Service by 12 noon on 
the day preceding the meeting. 

 

4.   WITHDRAWN APPLICATIONS   

 The Director – Place and Climate Change to advise Members of those 
planning applications on the agenda which have been withdrawn. 

 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:julie.hollands@rother.gov.uk


 

NOTE: Representations on any items on the Agenda must be received in writing by 
9:00am on the Monday preceding the meeting. 

 

Enquiries – please ask for Julie Hollands (Tel: 01424 787811) 
For details of the Council, its elected representatives and meetings, visit the Rother District 

Council website www.rother.gov.uk 

5.   DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST   

 To receive any disclosure by Members of personal and disclosable pecuniary 
interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and whether the 
Member regards the personal interest as prejudicial under the terms of the 
Code of Conduct.  Members are reminded of the need to repeat their 
declaration immediately prior to the commencement of the item in question. 

 

6.   PLANNING APPLICATIONS - INDEX  (Pages 1 - 2) 

7.   RR/2021/2252/P - ST. MARY'S RECREATION GROUND - LAND AT ST. 
MARY'S LANE - BEXHILL  (Pages 3 - 12) 

8.   PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE SCHEME OF DELEGATION AND 
ESTABLISHMENT OF A PLANNING CONSULTATION GROUP  (Pages 13 
- 16) 

9.   APPEALS  (Pages 17 - 22) 

10.   TO NOTE THE DATE AND TIME FOR FUTURE SITE INSPECTIONS   

 Tuesday 12 April 2022 at 9:00am departing from the Town Hall, Bexhill. 
 

 
 

Malcolm Johnston 
Chief Executive 

Agenda Despatch Date: 2 March 2022 
 
 



pl220310 – Planning Applications - Index 

Rother District Council                                                                      
 

Report to - Planning Committee 
 

Date - 10 March 2022 
 

Report of the - Director of Place and Climate Change 
 

Subject - Planning Applications – Index 
 

 
Director:  Ben Hook 
 

 
Planning Committee Procedures 
 
Background Papers 
These are planning applications, forms and plans as presented in the agenda,  
pertinent correspondence between the applicant, agents, consultees and other 
representatives in respect of the application, previous planning applications and 
correspondence where relevant, reports to Committee, decision notices and appeal 
decisions which are specifically referred to in the reports.  Planning applications can 
be viewed on the planning website http://www.rother.gov.uk/planning  
 
Planning Committee Reports 
If you are viewing the electronic copy of the Planning Applications report to Planning 
Committee then you can access individual reported applications by clicking on the link 
(View application/correspondence) at the end of each report. 
 
Consultations 
Relevant statutory and non-statutory consultation replies that have been received after 
the report has been printed and before the Committee meeting will normally be 
reported orally in a summary form. 
 
Late Representations 
Unless representations relate to an item which is still subject to further consultation 
(and appears on the agenda as a matter to be delegated subject to the expiry of the 
consultation period) any further representations in respect of planning applications on 
the Planning Committee agenda must be received by the Director – Place and Climate 
Change in writing by 9am on the Monday before the meeting at the latest. Any 
representation received after this time cannot be considered. 
 
Delegated Applications 
In certain circumstances the Planning Committee will indicate that it is only prepared   
to grant/refuse planning permission if/unless certain amendments to a proposal are 
undertaken or the application is subject to the completion of outstanding or further 
consultations.  In these circumstances the Director – Place and Climate Change can 
be delegated the authority to issue the decision of the Planning Committee once the 
requirements of the Committee has been satisfactorily complied with.  A delegated 
decision does not mean that planning permission or refusal will automatically be 
issued.  If there are consultation objections, difficulties, or negotiations which cannot 
be satisfactorily concluded, then the application will be reported back to the Planning 
Committee.  This delegation also allows the Director – Place and Climate Change to 
negotiate and amend applications, conditions, reasons for refusal and notes 
commensurate with the instructions of the Committee. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 6

http://www.rother.gov.uk/planning
http://www.planning.rother.gov.uk/WAM/pas/findCaseFile.do?appNumber=rr????????


pl220310 – Planning Applications - Index 

Applications requiring the applicant entering into an obligation under section 106 of 
the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) are also delegated.   
 

Order of Presentation 
The report on planning applications is presented in the following order as shown 
below: 
 

Agenda 
Item 

Reference Parish Site Address 
Page 
No. 

7 RR/2020/2252/P BEXHILL 

St Mary’s Recreation 
Ground – Land at 
St Mary’s Lane 
Bexhill 

3 

 

Page 2

http://planweb01.rother.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=RR/2021/2252/P


pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

 
 

SITE PLAN 
 
RR/2021/2252/P 
 

BEXHILL 
 

ST. MARY’S RECREATION GROUND – LAND 
AT, 

ST. MARY’S LANE 
 
  

 
 
        

 

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the 
permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office.  
(Crown Copyright).  Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.  No 
further copies may be made. 
Rother District Council Licence No. 100018643 2013 

 
Not to Scale 

 
  

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

Rother District Council 
 

Report to  - Planning Committee 

Date  - 10 March 2022  

Report of the  -  Director – Place and Climate Change 

Subject - Application RR/2021/2252/P 

Address - St. Mary’s Recreation Ground – Land at  

  St. Mary’s Lane 

BEXHILL 

Proposal - Construction of an electric race car track and siting of a 
shipping container for storage. 

View application/correspondence  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: It be RESOLVED to GRANT (FULL PLANNING) 
DELEGATED (EXPIRY OF RECONSULTATION)  
 

 
Director: Ben Hook 
 

 
Applicant:   Mr Andrew Coley 
Agent: Mr Andrew Coley 
Case Officer: Miss Harriet Nurse 
                                                                       (Email:  harriet.nurse@rother.gov.uk) 
 
Parish: BEXHILL 
 
Ward Members: Councillors J.J. Carroll and S.J. Coleman 
  
Reason for Committee consideration:  Director – Place and Climate Change 
referral: Council owned land. 
 
Statutory 8-week date: 26 January 2022 
Extension of time agreed to: 15 March 2022 
 

 
1.0 SUMMARY  

 
1.1 The proposed electric race car track would complement the existing 

recreation facility along St. Mary’s Lane. It would not detract from the rural 
character and appearance of the locality, would not adversely impact on the 
living conditions of occupiers of nearby residential properties and there are 
no highway safety concerns. The recommendation is to grant permission 
subject to the expiry of the re-consultation period and subject to the imposed 
conditions.  

 

 
 

Page 4

http://planweb01.rother.gov.uk/OcellaWeb/planningDetails?reference=RR/2021/2252/P
mailto:harriet.nurse@rother.gov.uk


pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

2.0 SITE 
 
2.1 This application relates to St. Mary’s Recreation Ground, a large open space 

located on the eastern side of St. Mary’s Lane. The site is outside the 
Development Boundary for Bexhill and is within the countryside. It is not 
within the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 

 
2.2 The recreation ground itself is grassland offering general open amenity 

space with a hardstanding near the access providing parking facilities for 
visitors. 

 
2.3 The nearest neighbouring property is High Beeches which is located some 

77m to the south. 
 

 
3.0 PROPOSAL 
 
3.1 This application seeks planning permission for the construction of an electric 

car racetrack and siting of a shipping container for storage, for the land use 
of the track for 1066 Racing. 1066 Racing is an off-road radio-controlled car 
racing club. The club race would use ‘1/10th scale RC cars’. 1066 Racing is 
a member of the British Radio Car Association (BRCA), who provide rules, 
regulations, safety recommendations for venues and crucially Public Liability 
insurance. 

 
3.2 The area of land proposed for the track, rostrum and container would be 

positioned approximately 53.5m northeast of the hardstanding of St. Mary’s 
Recreation Ground car park.  

 
3.3 The elements proposed within the application for the proposed land use of 

the track for 1066 Racing: 
  

(i) A flat track measuring approximately 40m x 40m of the grass surface 
within a fenced area. (maintained by 1066 Racing) 

(ii) A timber constructed rostrum, raised area for drivers to 
view/track/control their cars. 

(iii) A shipping container clad in wood providing a secure place to store 
club equipment, including that to maintain the land.  

 
Further clarification was received during the application confirming the 
proposed days/hours of operating, attendance, proposed parking 
arrangements and a risk assessment document. 
 
An amended location and block plan were received detailing an increase in 
the red edge to include the ‘confirmed’ proposed parking arrangements and 
supporting details. The amended plans and details are currently undergoing 
the re-consultation period accordingly. 
 

3.4 Usage 
The proposed usage for the club meetings would be a Sunday morning for a 
maximum of five hours, from 9am until 2pm and on one weekday evening 
during the summer months, after 5pm until sundown. The track would not be 
lit, evening meetings would only take place during summer months. The 
track would remain open at other times for local use (electric only) RC cars, 

Page 5



pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

this would be anticipated to be very minimal use. If a bigger meeting would 
take place, further permissions would be requested from Rother District 
Council (RDC). 
 

3.5 Attendees 
There would be between 15 and 25 competitors, potentially 30 at a busy 
meeting – it should be noted the indoor events attract the most attendees 
rather than outdoor occasions. It is proposed that 20 vehicles would be at a 
busy outdoor meeting but often this would be lower. 

 
3.6 Parking 

It is proposed that 20-25 parking spaces of 3m x 5m would be positioned on 
the grass on three sides of the proposed racetrack. Parking would be 
authorised under an annual licence issued by RDC Neighbourhood 
Services. Access to the parking spaces would be across the grass from the 
existing hardstanding car park, a club representative would be on hand to 
oversee the arrival and departure of all vehicles attending. 

 

 
4.0 HISTORY 
 
4.1 No relevant history. 
 

 
5.0 POLICIES 
 
5.1 The following policies of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy 2014 are 

relevant to the proposal: 
 

 OSS4: General Development Considerations 

 RA3: Development in the Countryside 

 BX1: Overall strategy for Bexhill 

 EN1: Landscape Stewardship  

 EN3: Design Quality 
 

5.2 The following policies of the Development and Site Allocations Local Plan 
are relevant to the proposal: 

 

 DEN1: Maintaining Landscape Character 
 
5.3 The National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance 

are also material considerations.  
 

 
6.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 
6.1 Environmental Health – NO OBJECTION 
 
6.1.1 Based on the information supplied with the application the proposed use 

appears to be limited to only one or two days per week and to present no 
significant noise impacts and no requirement for artificial lighting; 
consequently, I have no adverse observations on the proposed use.  

 

Page 6

http://www.rother.gov.uk/CoreStrategy
http://www.rother.gov.uk/dasa


pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

6.1.2 Following an email from an objector, the Environmental Health Officer 
responded with the following: 

 
6.1.3 Regarding the objections, I considered both the question of noise and of 

toilet provision before preparing my original response to you on this 
application.  I do not believe the video example supplied is representative of 
the outdoor situation proposed for St. Mary’s Lane being a recording made 
within a highly reverberant indoor space. The absence of toilet provision on 
the site is a consideration but it is not particularly unusual for sites with 
occasional recreational uses, be it football, BMX track, fishing etc.  The 
recreation ground appears to have been used for both football and cricket in 
the past with an advertised provision for two junior pitches.  The public 
toilets in Sidley are approximately one mile distant.  

 
6.1.4 For those reasons I stand by my original observations on this application. 
 
6.2 Planning Notice 
 
6.2.1 59 letters of objection have been received. The concerns raised are 

summarised as follows:  

 Do not want to see and suffer cars/vans parked on the recreation ground 
on the grass. 

 Concerns regarding traffic/parking at the site, in the small car park and 
on St. Mary’s Lane itself. 

 The lane is already very busy and narrow, limited parking at the car park 
for such an activity/business. 

 Concerns regarding the noise nuisance to local residents and an 
increase in traffic. 

 No toilet facilities and no paths, concerns this would destroy the land. 

 Concerns regarding the proposed location, opposite the cemetery and 
on a narrow lane – which is already more congested than ever. 

 Private buildings very nearby. 

 Elements of noise – backing onto a residential area is totally 
inappropriate.  

 Disrupt the quiet atmosphere while walking and relaxing. 

 Noise, pollution, mess, congestion and lack of toilet facilities and parking 
makes this the complete wrong place. 

 Environmental concerns – disruption to local wildlife. 

 Nuisance to local residents. 

 Could be anti-social, but potentially dangerous.  

 Who will monitor the site? 

 High congestion – Hastings events have up to 80 vehicles. 

 These are playing fields for sports – just another incursion into 
eradicating our open green spaces. 

 Leave the green spaces alone – no more infrastructure. 

 Competitors could double or triple in number. 

 It is purely financial – rather than for community benefits. 

 Lack of parking space for 80 attendees. 

 The cars do create noise, even more so do the spectators and the 
competitors – impacting the only green area where people go to sit 
quietly. 

 Lack of consultation with residents who will be most impacted. 
 

Page 7



pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

6.2.2 22 letters of support have been received.  The reasons are summarised as 
follows: 

 Great place for this activity to take place. 

 Very impressive – Bexhill needs this for the community to take part or be 
spectators. 

 It is good seeing the ground being used. 

 Encouraging to see a positive use – giving attention to young people, 
allow residents to be more active. 

 Could bring new life to the recreation ground. 

 Great use of space and there is still plenty of room on the green for dog 
walkers and families to play. 

 Promotes good mental health. 

 Great idea for an unused space. 
 
6.2.3 Two letters with general comments have been received. The reasons are 

summarised as follows: 

 All for the project although concerns regarding the parking 
accommodating the number of participating players/supporters. 

 We need this field for residents to enjoy and walk their dogs. 
 

6.2.4 All comments can be viewed in full on the Council’s website. 
 
6.3 Bexhill Town Council – OBJECTION  
 
6.3.1 Bexhill Town Council objects on the basis of the adverse impact on the 

environment, the lack of toilet facilities, the noise and disturbance that it will 
cause neighbouring properties, particularly in the evenings. Highways issues 
due to the limited access to the recreation ground. The Town Council feels 
this is not a suitable use of the green space at this location. 

 

 
7.0 APPRAISAL 
 
7.1 The main issues for consideration are the provision of the recreation space 

for an electric car racing use and its effect on the locality and the impacts 
upon neighbouring and nearby properties. 

 
7.1.1 The provision of the 1066 Racing use to the area of land on the recreation 

site and its effect on the locality 
 
7.1.2 The National Planning Policy Framework at Section 8 sets out the planning 

objective of ‘promoting healthy and safe communities. At paragraph 93 it 
says that to provide the social and recreational facilities and services the 
community needs, planning decisions should plan positively for the provision 
and use of shared spaces, community facilities sports venues, open space, 
and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and 
residential environments. It adds that, decisions should take into account 
and support the delivery of local strategies to improve health, and social 
well-being for all sections of the community, and guard against the 
unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly where this 
would reduce the community’s ability to meet its day-to-day needs. In terms 
of ‘open space and recreation’, at paragraph 98 it states that access to a 
network of high-quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and physical 
activity is important for the health and well-being of communities and can 

Page 8



pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

deliver wider benefits for nature and support efforts to address climate 
change. Paragraph 99 goes on to say that existing open space, sports and 
recreational land, including playing fields, should not be built on unless 
specified criteria are met, including: the loss resulting from the proposed 
development would be replaced by equivalent or better provision in terms of 
quantity and quality in a suitable location; or (c) the development is for 
alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits of which clearly 
outweigh the loss of the current or former use. Section 12. ‘achieving well-
designed places’ at paragraph 130 (f) requires that planning decisions 
should ensure that developments create places that are safe, inclusive and 
accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of 
amenity for existing and future users. 

 
7.1.3 The Council’s Core Strategy Policy BX1(ii): includes within the ‘overall 

strategy for Bexhill’ the objective of delivering development of local 
amenities, including support for community activities and facilities, and 
improved sports and leisure facilities. 

 
7.1.4 Policy EN1 provides protection for the landscape character of the area, 

whilst Policy EN3 requires all development to be of a high-quality design. 
 
7.1.5 St. Mary’s Lane is rural in character with scattered residential properties 

which generally occupy large sites. The lane is lined with hedges and trees. 
The recreation ground is a large open space with trees lining the boundary 
of the ground, an area of grassland with a small section of fenced hard 
standing to the southwest providing visitors parking.  

 
7.1.6 The application relates to an existing recreation ground and no loss of the 

area of the recreation ground would be proposed under this application. The 
proposed facilities would not impact on the existing areas on the recreation 
ground. The application does, however, include the loss of an area some 
40m x 40m of informal amenity grassland within the recreation ground that 
would be taken up by the development of the space with a track positioned 
on the grassland and the specific facilities included within the fenced area (a 
rostrum and shipping container). Consequently, a different kind of recreation 
experience would be created within those areas, on the operating 
days/times proposed. The proposed would be a new addition to the 
recreation ground but nevertheless of similar nature to community meetings 
we would see at the existing recreation ground, including football, cricket 
matches and as such the nature of the activity would remain similar to a 
recreation ground. As such it is considered this use would be acceptable to 
the area within this recreation ground.  

 
7.1.7 The area of land where the 1066 racing facilities would be positioned would 

be 53.5m to the north of the hardstanding area of the Recreation Ground, 
against the west side boundary. Within this area, the proposed flat track 
approximately 40m x 40m would have a grass surface, the track being laid 
on top, enclosed within a 1.2m high fence along its boundary. This area 
would include the addition of a rostrum structure and a shipping container 
for storage. The rostrum would measure 15m in length with a platform width 
of 1.5m and platform height of 1.4m and a rail height of 2.5m. The shipping 
container would measure 2.4m in width by 6.05m in depth with a height of 
2.4m. Materials would consist of timber for the rostrum and green wood clad 
to the shipping container, with the track to be laid on the grass surface.  

Page 9



pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

7.1.8 The structures would be positioned next to each other within the area of 
land, and therefore the land used for the 1066 racing would be read as part 
of a group of structures and would not read as an encroachment into the 
countryside. The area of land would be served by the existing access to St. 
Mary’s Recreation Ground. The scale and design of the structures proposed 
are of a simple nature, in keeping with the locality and of sympathetic 
materials as to not have a harmful impact visually or physically on the 
character and appearance of this rural location. 

 
7.1.9 Given the countryside location, if permission is granted, it would be essential 

to put controls in place to ensure that the use would be operating within 
approved limits. It would therefore be necessary to impose conditions to 
manage the use and operating times.  

 
7.1.10 Overall, it is considered that the proposed land use and relevant structures 

would be appropriately sited and would be of an acceptable use, scale and 
design as to not adversely impact the character and locality of the recreation 
ground and surrounding area. 

 
7.2.1 Residential Amenity 
 
7.2.2 Policy OSS4 (ii) of the Local Plan Core Strategy says that all development 

should not unreasonably harm the amenities of adjoining properties. With 
regard to the proposal, the potential for impacts on residential amenity would 
principally be in terms of any noise impacts and secondly, any significant 
amounts of intrusive light affecting neighbouring properties as a result of the 
operation of any proposed lighting. In relation to these matters Policy DEN7 
(environmental pollution) of the Development and Site Allocations Local 
Plan is relevant. This says that development will only be permitted where it 
is demonstrated that there will be no significant adverse impacts on health, 
local amenities or environmental character. There is no proposed lighting 
within this application. In relation to noise, it says that consideration will also 
be given to the character of the location and established land uses. The 
application submission includes details of the proposed electric car to be 
used and the fact there would be little to no noise, Environmental Health has 
been consulted on the proposals. 

 
7.2.3 Regarding the issue of potential noise: the site is within a recreation ground 

environment. With residential dwellings scattered along St. Mary’s Lane, its 
nearest dwelling being approximately 77m in distance to the site (High 
Beeches). The existing use of the site is as a recreation ground and 
therefore neighbouring residents will be aware of existing activity and 
background noise characteristics associated with the existing uses. These 
may be more noticeable at times than others, such as when a 
football/cricket match is being held. With regard to the proposed new 
development the noise of the electric radio-controlled racing cars appears to 
be little to none. Environmental Health has confirmed in its consultation 
response that there would be no significant noise impacts and no 
requirement for artificial lighting with the cars and this has resulted in a no 
objection to the proposal. Other matters considered by Environmental 
Health included the absence of toilet provision on the site, nevertheless, it 
has been considered that it is not particularly unusual for sites with 
occasional recreational uses, be it football, BMX track, fishing etc. The 
recreation ground appears to have been used for both football and cricket in 

Page 10



pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

the past with an advertised provision for two junior pitches. As such it is 
considered there would be no adverse impacts on the residential amenities 
of nearby or neighbouring properties. 

 
7.2.4 The area of land would be positioned a significant distance from any 

neighbouring property and would not directly impact on their amenities. In 
terms of additional traffic and activity, the proposal is for the use of the land 
for a maximum of five hours on a Sunday morning, 9am until 2pm and on 
one weekday evening during summer months only, after 5pm until sundown. 
Within the application there would be proposed parking spaces surrounding 
three sides of the fenced area (license to be applied for) with this in place 
and the proposed estimated numbers it is considered that it would not 
generate significant levels of traffic/nor parking issues to St. Mary’s Lane. 

 
7.3 Other Issues 
 
7.3.1 Highway safety and parking  
 
7.3.2 Policy CO6 of the Core Strategy facilitates a safe physical environment by 

(ii) ensuring that all development avoids prejudice to road and/or pedestrian 
safety.  

 
7.3.3 Policy TR4 (i) of the Core Strategy requires development to meet the 

residual needs of the development for off-street parking having taken into 
consideration localised circumstances and having full regard to the potential 
for access by means other than the car, and to any safety, congestion or 
amenity impacts of a reliance on parking off-site whether on-street or off-
street.  

 
7.3.4 The site is served by an existing vehicular access. Traffic speeds are 

generally low along the lane and therefore the operating use proposed 
should not increase hazards on the highway. There is adequate space on 
site to park and turn multiple vehicles, specifically the proposed addition of 
parking spaces surrounding the racetrack on the grassland (on submission 
and approval of a parking licence) would provide sufficient space for the 
proposed vehicles attending the meetings regularly. 

 

 
8.0 PLANNING BALANCE AND CONCLUSION 
 
8.1 The proposal of the provision of the 1066 Racing area and the proposed 

structures would not detract from the locality of the Recreation Ground and 
would not adversely impact on the nearby neighbouring residential 
properties and would not prejudice highway safety. The proposal complies 
with Core Strategy policies together with the various provisions contained 
within the National Planning Policy Framework and can therefore be 
supported and granted full planning subject to the expiry of the re-
consultation period currently taking place for the amended plans and details.  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION: GRANT (FULL PLANNING) DELEGATED (EXPIRY OF 
RECONSULTATION) 
 

 

Page 11



pl220310 - RR/2021/2252/P 

CONDITIONS: 
 
1.  The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 

three years from the date of this permission. 
Reason: In accordance with section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended by section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004). 

 
2.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans and details: 
Location Plan: RC racetrack at St. Mary's Recreation Ground dated 
09/02/2022 
Block plan: radio-controlled car track area and parking dated 11/02/2022 
1066 Racing parking/vehicle access and movement plan detail submitted 
09/02/2022 
Site East/North Elevation submitted 24/11/2021 
Rostrum Elevation submitted 24/11/2021 
Shipping Container Elevations submitted 24/11/2021 
Details within email submitted 25/01/2022 
Risk Assessment details submitted 25/01/2022 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
3. The use hereby permitted shall only take place on the following days and 

hours:  
a) On one weekday evening per week and shall cease before sundown. 
b) On Sundays only between 9am – 2pm. 
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of the locality in accordance with Policy 
OSS4 (ii) of the Rother District Local Plan. 

 
4.  The race car track hereby permitted shall only be used by electric remote-

control vehicles and shall not be used by petrol or other fuel powered remote 
control vehicles. 
Reason: To protect the living conditions of occupiers of nearby residential 
properties and to protect the rural character of the locality in accordance with 
Policies OSS4 (ii) (iii) and RA3 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy and 
Policy DEN7 of the Rother Development and Site Allocations Local Plan. 

 
5.  No floodlighting or other external means of illumination of the racetrack 

hereby permitted shall be provided, installed or operated at the site.  
Reason: To protect the residential amenities of the locality and to protect the 
special character of the rural area, in accordance with Policies OSS4 (ii and 
iii), RA3 (v) and EN1 of the Rother Local Plan Core Strategy. 

 
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK: In accordance with the 
requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38) and with the 
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2015, the Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in 
determining this application by assessing the proposal against all material 
considerations, including planning policies and any representations that have been 
received and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance 
with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 12



pl220310 – Planning Delegation 

Rother District Council                                                 
 
Report to:     Planning Committee 
 
Date:                        10 March 2022 
 
Title:  Proposed changes to the scheme of delegation and 

establishment of a Planning Consultation Group  
 
Report of:   Myles Joyce 
 
Ward(s):   All 
 
Purpose of Report: The purpose of this report is to propose changes in the 

scheme of delegation for certain planning applications 
which currently are determined at Planning Committee 
and whether they are more appropriately dealt with under 
delegated powers   

  
Officer 
Recommendation(s): It be RESOLVED: That:    

 
1) the officer scheme of delegation in respect of the Planning Service be 

permanently amended by requiring the ‘COM’ applications to be discussed at 
a Planning Consultation Group consisting of Members and officers organised 
by the Development Management Service which will decide whether the 
application(s) go forward to be determined by Planning Committee or returned 
to officers under delegated authority; 
 

2) the Planning Consultation Group be established and comprise of the Chair of 
the Planning Committee (or Vice-Chair), a Member of the opposition who is 
also a Planning Committee member, a third member to be chosen by rota, the 
Development Manager (or Area Team Leader(s)) and where appropriate the 
case officer(s); 
 

3) the Planning Consultation Group shall determine only whether the said 
applications will be dealt with by Planning Committee or more appropriately 
returned to officers to decide under delegated powers; 
 

4) a list of such applications and the outcome of the Planning Consultation 
Group’s decisions be reported to the next scheduled meeting of the Planning 
Committee; and 
 

5) the Council’s Constitution be amended accordingly.  
 

 
Introduction 
 
1. Members will note that the weekly list denote applications as either ‘DEL’ for 

determination under delegated powers or ‘COM’ for determination by Planning 
Committee. 
 

2. The current set up provides a vehicle for ‘call-in’ by Ward Members provided a 
valid planning reason is given up to 28 days of the weekly list or up to seven 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8



pl220310 – Planning Delegation 

days after the expiry of the consultation period for the given planning 
application. 
   

3. The proposed amendment is to allow for the type of applications which 
automatically get called in due to ownership and/or relationship between both 
Members and officers and the Applicants to go before a Planning Consultation 
Group (PCG) which will consider and determine the most appropriate means 
of determining the planning application(s) before them. 
  

4. It is proposed that the PCG will consist of the Chair of the Planning 
Committee (or Vice-Chair in their stead), a Member of the opposition who is 
also a Planning Committee member, a member to be chosen by rota by the 
Development Manager or Area Team Leader(s) in their stead and where 
appropriate the case officer(s). 
 

5. Whilst it is anticipated that there will be one such meeting to be held on the 
Monday prior to the deadline for submission of Committee reports for each 
Committee cycle, it is anticipated that on occasion more than one meeting per 
cycle may be required.  

 

6. A list of applications before the PCG and the agreed method of determination 
will be reported to the next scheduled meeting of the Planning Committee for 
information. There will be no opportunity for the Planning Committee to 
change the recommendation of the PCG.  

 

7. The proposal is considered to be a cost and time effective way of considering 
the above applications and the most appropriate method of determination. It is 
anticipated that several items which would automatically be before the 
Planning Committee at present could be dealt with under delegated powers 
allowing Planning Committee resources to focus on more complex and or 
controversial cases. 

 

8. The PCG shall bestow voting rights for Members only with officers’ present in 
an advisory role. The PCG will only consider whether the items go to 
Committee or can be dealt with under delegated powers and have no other 
decision-making purpose. 

 
9. The quorum shall be three and the chair shall have casting vote where 

difference of opinion between Members or any abstentions. 
  
Conclusion 
 
10. It is considered that the proposed revisions to the officer delegation scheme 

would be a resource effective way to streamline the Planning Committee 
procedure and its outcomes would be made public via a list.    

 
11. In accordance with Article 15 – Review and Revision of the Constitution, 15.3 

Changes to the Constitution, as this matter is in connection with officer 
delegations that flow from the Planning Committee, this matter does not 
require full Council approval.  

 
 
 

Page 14



pl220310 – Planning Delegation 

Financial Implications 
 
12. No additional financial implications identified. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
13. Amend the delegation scheme in the Constitution.  
 
Risk Implications 
 
14. Failure to revise the Constitution to simplify the planning delegation system 

will mean a continuation of a less efficient system adding continuing pressure 
on an already over stretched planning department. 

 
Other Implications Applies? Other Implications Applies? 

Human Rights No Equalities and Diversity No 

Crime and Disorder No Consultation No 

Environmental No Access to Information No 

Sustainability No Exempt from publication No 

Risk Management No   

 

Chief Executive  Malcolm Johnston 

Report Contact 
Officer: 

Myles Joyce, Interim Development Manager 

Email address: myles.joyce@rother.gov.uk 

Appendices: N/A  

Relevant previous 
Minutes: 
 

N/A 

Background Papers: N/A 

Reference 
Documents: 

N/A 

 

Page 15

mailto:myles.joyce@rother.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



pl220310 – Appeals 

Rother District Council                                                 
 
Report to:     Planning Committee 
 
Date:                        10 March 2022 
 
Title: Appeals 
 
Report of:   Ben Hook, Director – Place and Climate Change 
 
Ward(s):   All 
 
Purpose of Report: To update the Planning Committee  
  
Officer 
Recommendation(s): It be RESOLVED: That the report be noted.    

 

 
APPEALS LODGED 
 
RR/2020/1875/P BATTLE: Frederick Thatcher Place - Land west of, North  
(Delegation) Trade Road, Battle 

Construction of 4 No. dwellings with associated parking 
and landscaping. 
Mr Harry Wills 

 
RR/2021/702/T BATTLE: Buckles, 7 Netherfield Way, Netherfield, Battle 
(Delegation) Proposed reduction of large Oak tree (T1) in front garden.  

Felicity Tylor-Jones 
 
RR/2021/1102/P BATTLE: Caldbec Hill - Land at North Side of, Battle  
(Delegation) Proposed detached dwelling. 

Mr N. Whistler 
 
RR/2021/1151/P BEXHILL: 3 & 5 Gunters Lane, Bexhill 
(Delegation) Two storey rear extension to No. 3 and single storey rear 

extension to No. 5, existing pair of cottages. Side 
extension to provide an additional 3-bedroom dwelling 
(resubmission). 
Dale Saunders Holdings Ltd 

 
RR/2020/2418/P BEXHILL: Beulah Baptist Church, Clifford Road, Bexhill 
(Delegation) Demolition of existing sanctuary and Buckhurst Room hall 

and construction of a new church and community centre 
with associated external works. Retention of the Clifford 
Hall and new cladding and window configuration to the 
Beulah Centre elevation on Clifford Road. 
The Trustees of Beulah Baptist 

 

RR2020/1779/P BEXHILL:  Long Acres, St Margarets Crescent,  
(Delegation) Whydown, Bexhill 

Retention of essential rural worker's dwelling. Retention 
of all other agricultural structures and infrastructure within 
site (retrospective). Proposed use of land for agricultural 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



pl220310 – Appeals 

purposes, including a community farm (for educational 
and therapeutic purposes) and non-agricultural purposes 
including breeding of pets including dogs and rabbits. 

 Ms S. Clark 
 
RR/2021/234/P BREDE: Brede Valley Farm, Frymans Lane, Brede 
(Delegation) Erection of agricultural dwelling. 

Brede Valley Farm Ltd 
 
RR/2021/113/P BREDE: The Lions Den, Opposite entrance to Goatham  
(Delegation) Lane, Brede 

Change of use of land from agricultural to outside fitness 
facility. (Retrospective) 
Mr Ricky Burgess 

 
RR/2021/1424/P BURWASH: St Giles, High Street, Burwash 
(Non-determination) Proposed detached single storey annex building 

providing accommodation ancillary to existing dwelling 
house. 
Mrs Josephine O'Donnell 

 
RR/2020/2306/P CAMBER: Poundfield Farm, Farm Lane, Camber 
(Delegation) Siting of holiday lodge for seasonal tourist/holidaymakers 

accommodation. 
Mrs Michelle Bristow 

 
RR/2021/2012/P CATSFIELD: St Kitts - Site Adjacent, Church Road,  
(Delegation) Catsfield 

Erection of 1 No. Chalet Bungalow, together with parking 
and landscaping. 
Mr Jack Waller 

 
RR/2021/2077/P CROWHURST:  Willow Pond House, Swainham Lane,  
(Delegation) Crowhurst. 

Change of use of land for the siting of a timber cabin 
(caravan) for retreat holidays, re-positioned vehicular 
access off Swainham Lane and parking for two vehicles. 
Mr Richard Warden 

 
RR/2021/1765/P GUESTLING:  Sunnyside – Garage and land opposite,  
(Delegation) Eight Acre Lane, Three Oaks, Guestling 
 Change of use of land to allow proposed parking space 

associated with dwellinghouse 
 Ms Christine Harmar-Brown 
 
RR/2020/1857/P GUESTLING: Star Stud, Ivyhouse Lane, Guestling 
(Delegation) Change of use of barn to holiday accommodation.  

Mr J. O'Hara 
 
RR/2021/1907/P  MOUNTFIELD: Johns Cross Cafe – Land at, Johns Cross  
(Delegation) Road, Mountfield 

Outline: Replacement of existing self-storage containers 
and construction of buildings for self-storage (Class B8) 

Page 18



pl220310 – Appeals 

along with parking, landscaping and use of existing 
access to the A21, with access considered. 
Mr M. Horley 

 
RR/2019/2677/P NORTHIAM: Station Road – Land South of, Northiam 
(Non-determination) Demolition of the existing marketing suite and erection of 

two detached dwellings, car parking spaces, refuse and 
cycle stores. 

Persimmon Homes Ltd 
 
RR/2021/1935/P NORTHIAM: Cooks Farmhouse – Land Adj, New Road,  
(Delegation) Northiam 

Proposed siting of a static holiday let unit and associated 
change of use of the land. 
Mrs Sarah Secker 

 
RR/2021/879/P PEASMARSH: Lyndhurst Cottage, Main Street,  
(Delegation) Peasmarsh 

Change of use from granny annexe/holiday let to 
separate residential dwelling. 

Mr Terry Denman 
 
RR/2021/2759/P PEASMARSH:  Partridge Farm, Starvecrow Lane,  
(Delegation) Peasmarsh 

Change of use of the building and land from holiday let 
accommodation to permanent dwelling. 
Mr and Mrs A. & W. Thomas 

 
RR/2021/2888/P PEASMARSH: 1 Brickfield, Main Street, Peasmarsh 
(Delegation) Erection of a two-storey side extension over part of 

existing footprint to form one bedroom maisonette. 
Mr Peter Bedborough 

 
RR/2021/1760/P RYE: 12 Market Road, K-9 Divine, Rye 
(Delegation) Change window joinery on the front elevation.  

Richard A Copland Chartered Surveyors 
 
RR/2021/665/L SEDLESCOMBE. Little Swailes Green Farmhouse, Little  
(Delegation) Swailes Green Farm, Cripps Corner, Sedlescombe 

Construction of a single storey extension with a glazed 
link connected to existing dwelling, new enclosed porch 
to the North, insertion of three conservation rooflights and 
alterations to the existing facades with new timber 
weatherboarding and re- instatement of an existing brick 
garden wall and minor landscaping works. 
Ms Tina Kennard 

 
RR/2021/664/P SEDLESCOMBE. Little Swailes Green Farmhouse, Little  
(Delegation) Swailes Green Farm, Cripps Corner, Sedlescombe 

Construction of a single storey extension with a glazed 
link connected to existing dwelling, new enclosed porch 
to the North, insertion of three conservation rooflights and 
alterations to the existing facades with new timber 

Page 19



pl220310 – Appeals 

weatherboarding and re- instatement of an existing brick 
garden wall and minor landscaping works. 
Ms Tina Kennard 

 
RR/2020/2116/P SEDLESCOMBE: The Croft, 'Aurora', Hurst Lane,  
(Delegation) Sedlescombe 

Construction of a dwelling house and associated 
landscape and access works. 
Mr & Mrs G.M. & V.G. Slowman 

 
RR/2021/240/P WESTFIELD: Summer Cottage - Land to the south west  
(Delegation)  of, Whitelands, Westfield 

Demolition of existing storage buildings and 
hardstanding. Construction of new dwelling with 
landscaping, parking and use of existing access to the 
A28. Creation of a new planting buffer and biodiversity 
enhancements 
Mr & Mrs W. Cornish 

 
RR/2020/1416/P WESTFIELD: Whitelands Kennels, Westfield Lane,  
(Delegation) Westfield 

Demolition of existing kennels. Proposed new dwelling 
comprising of five bedrooms. New driveway, parking 
area and associated landscaping. 
Mr Damon Robinson 

 

 
APPEALS STARTED 
 
RR/2021/116/P BATTLE: 85-86 High Street, Battle 
(Delegation) Change of use of ground floor from disused shops to two 

holiday lets. 
Crowhurst Farm Developments Ltd 

 
RR/2020/151/P FAIRLIGHT: Pett Level Road - Land South of, Fairlight  
(Committee - Cove, Fairlight 
 Decision) Outline: Development of up to 43 residential units 

(including 40% affordable), including new vehicular 
access from Pett level Road. 
Wellbeck Strategic Land III 

 
RR/2021/1174/P HURST GREEN: 76 London Road, Ravynsden, Hurst  
(Delegation) Green 

Erection of double garage and domestic workshop with 
home office over. 
Mr Nicholas Meurice 

 
RR/2021/2164/P MOUNTFIELD: 3 Church Cottages, Church Road,  
(Delegation) Mountfield 

Construction of replacement garage/carport 
Mr & Mrs C. Norman 

 
RR/2021/1165/P WHATLINGTON: Benham Cottage - Land at, Woodmans  
(Delegation) Green Road, Whatlington 

Page 20



pl220310 – Appeals 

Construction of a detached dwellinghouse, gardens, 
parking and use of existing access to A21 (resubmission 
of RR/2020/836/P) 
Mr and Mrs D. Ridler 

 
 
APPEALS ALLOWED 
 
RR/2021/599/P NORTHIAM: Fernbank - Land adjacent to, Rye Road,  
(Delegation) Northiam 

Relocation of vehicular access to the land and stop up 
existing vehicular access to the land. (Retrospective) 
Mr G. Fairbass 

 
 
APPEALS DISMISSED 
 
RR/2021/53/P GUESTLING: Copshall Farm, Winchelsea Road,  
(Non-determination) Guestling Green, Guestling 

External alterations to barn to facilitate conversion of barn 
to hotel and landscaping. 
Mr Colin Pennington 

 
RR/2019/840/P RYE: Ferry Road - Land at, Rye 
(Delegation) Outline: Development of 6 dwellings.  

Reliant Building Contractors Ltd 
 
RR/2019/2758/P WHATLINGTON: St Mary Magdalen Church - Land South  
(Committee - West of, Whatlington 
 Decision) Construction of a church car park and erection of a 

detached dwelling. 
Mrs Pamela Butcher 

 
 
APPEALS WITHDRAWN 
 
NONE 
 
FORTHCOMING HEARINGS/INQUIRIES 
 
RR/2020/512/P EWHURST: Upper Morgay Wood, Junction Road,  
(Delegation) Staplecross 

Demolition of existing agricultural buildings and existing 
dwelling and replacement dwelling including extension of 
residential curtilage. 
Mr Greenwood 

 
RR/2020/498/O BEXHILL: The Kloofs Caravan Site, The Kloofs,  
(Delegation) Sandhurst Lane 

Application for a Certificate of Lawful Existing Use or 
Development for the use of the site as recreation land 
and service area ancillary to the caravan site. 
Mr T. Griggs 

 

Page 21



pl220310 – Appeals 

Details of the above Hearings/Inquiries to be confirmed by Planning Inspectorate. 
 

Chief Executive: Malcolm Johnston 

Report Contact 
Officer: 

Ben Hook, Director – Place and Climate Change 

e-mail address: ben.hook@rother.gov.uk 

Appendices: N/A  

Relevant previous 
Minutes: 
 

N/A 

Background 
Papers: 

N/A 

Reference 
Documents: 

N/A 

 

Page 22

mailto:ben.hook@rother.gov.uk

	Agenda
	6 Planning Applications - Index
	7 RR/2021/2252/P - St. Mary's Recreation Ground - Land at St. Mary's Lane - Bexhill
	8 Proposed changes to the scheme of delegation and establishment of a Planning Consultation Group
	9 Appeals

